SITE NUMBER: WA-II-504

ADDRESS: 119 West Main Street, Sharpsburg, MD

OWNER/LOT NUMBER/ACCESS: Christ Reformed Church, no lot/tax number,
RUILDING DATE: 1890

The Christ Reformed Church is a tall, south-facing,
horizontally massed, two-story-with-tower, three-bay, brick
(Flemish and English bond), freestanding, ecclesiastical structure
resting on a stone foundation. The building is set directly at the
public-right-of-way and is built in a restrained Romanesque Revival
style. The front-gable roof is covered with slate shingles and has
slightly overhanging eaves. There are entrances to the building in
the right and left bays of the front facade, as well as several in
the rear addition. The entrances in the front facade are round
ai'ched with glazing in the arched po:rtior.. Rectangular, two-panel,
double wooden doors resting on stone sills and approached by
cncrete steps complete the entrance composition. The center bay
of the front facade holds a central stained glass window.

The Sharpsburg Christ United Church of Christ dates to 1768
when Joseph Chapline, fournder of the town, deeded land for a church
and burial ground to the German Reformed Presbyterians. The
original church was sited on Chapline: Street. The congregation
moved to its present location in 1832 upon the completion of its
cturch at that site. During the Battle at Antietam, the structure
su:rved as a hospital. Since that time it has been remodeled twice,
once in 1890.- and then in .1946. The cornerstone on the building
aitests to. its cpnstruction cﬁfonology statiné that the original
c'warch was constructed in-1832 and rebuilt in 1890. The building

iz noted on the 1922 Sanborn map as 212 West Main and as having a




WA 504

two-story carriage house behind it along the alley and a two-story
garage at the northwest corner of the property.

The building is within the Western Maryland Geographic
C;ganization, the Development Period of Industrial/Urban Dominance,
and falls within the Historic Period Theme of Religion.

Prepared by Julie Mueller, June 1y91
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1. Name

{indicate preferred name)

historic

Christ Reformed Church

and/or common

2.

Location

street & number 119 West Main Street ___ not for publication
city, town Sharpsburg ____ vicinity of congressional district
state Maryland county Washington
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
district - - public X__ occupied _—_agriculture _____ museum
—__ building(s) _X_ private ____unoccupied ____commercial ___ park
- structure ___both —___work in progress _ educational ____ private residence
—_ site Public Acquisition Accessible __ entertainment x religious
-~ __ object ____in process _X yes: restricted ____government ___ scientific
—_ being considered —_ yes: unrestricted — industrial ___ transportation
___not applicable __ po — military ___other:

4. owner Of Propertv (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name

Christ Reformed Church

street & number

119 West Main Street

telephone no.:

city, town

Sharpshurg

state and zip code Maryland 21782

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc.

Washington County Courthouse

liber

street & number

Summit Avenue and West Washington Street

folio

city, town

Hagerstown

state

6. Representation in Existing nistorical surveys

titie

date — federal __ state ___ county ___ local
| pository for survey records

city, town state




S0 -

7. Descnptu)n Survey No.WA-II-688
c%ndition Check one Check one

__excellent — deteriorated ____ unaltered " original site

——good —ruins X altered —— moved date of move

—__ fair —__ unexposed

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its
various elements as it exists today.

The Setting

The Christ Reformed Church is located in Washington County at 119

West Main Street in Sharpsburg. It is sited directly at the public-
right-of-way, as are most of the buildings in the town, on Sharpsburg's
principal west-east thoroughfare. The site includes the church and a
small side yard which is defined by a wrought-iron fence. The building
rests at grade on a 51.5' x 103' lot at the northeast corner of West

Main Street and the first alley west of Mechanic Street. It 1s a few
lots west of the town square and the traditional commerical/social center
of Sharpsburg and is flanked on either side by residential structures.

Exterior

The Christ Reformed Church is a tall, south-facing, horizontally massed,
two-story-with-tower, three-bay, brick (Flemish and English bond), free-
standing, ecclesiastical structure resting on a stone foundation.

The building is built in a restrained Romanesque Revival style. The
front-gable roof is covered with slate shingles and has overhanging and
open eaves supported by ornamental brackets. There are entrances to

the building in the right and left bays of the front facade, as well as
several in the rear addition., The entrances in the front facade are
round-arched. The entrance in the west bay projects slightly from the
face of the church, has decorative buttressing, and consists of three-
panel double-doors that fill the entire entry. Those in the east bay,
tower entrance are slightly recessed, rectangular double-doors with
glazing in the arch. The center bay of the front facade holds a central
stained glass window. The tower holds narrow slit windows except in

the face. Decorative brickwork on the building includes stringcourses and
dentilling on the tower and arches defining the window and door openings.

The building was sandblasted in 1976 and has been treated with silicon.
Interior

The interior of the church is divided into three sections: the small
front vestibule areas, the main santuary, and the Sunday School room,
office, and support facilities at the rear of the buillding.

The vestibules are small entry hallways with doors leading into the
sanctuary. The santtuary has two sets of curved pews with a center aisle.
A curved railing extends into the sanctuary from the squared apse, which
is further defined by an arched opening. Decorative molding at the doors
and arches consists of simple profiles with bulls-eye corner blocks.

(continued...)



8. Significance Survey No. WA-II=668" 574/

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below x

——_prehistoric ____ archeology-prehistoric ___ community planning ____ landscape architecture ___ religion

—1400-1499 ___ archeology-historic — conservation — law - science

~ _1500-1589 ____ agriculture —___economics — literature — sculpture
__1600-1699 _X __ architecture ____education — military X__ social/

— 17001799 ___art ____engineering —__ music humanitarian

—X1800-1899 ___ commerce — exploration/settiement ____ philosophy — theater

— 1900~ —_ communications __industry — politics/government ___ transportation
____invention _ other (specify)

Specific dates 1832 » 18 90 Py 19 Le Builder/Architect

check: Applicable Criteria: X A _ B XC _D

and/or
Applicable Exception: _ A B _C _D _E _F _ G
Level of Significance: x national _ state _ZXlocal

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and
support.

The Sharpsburg Christ Reformed Church dates to 1763 when Joseph Chapline,
founder of the town, deed¥land for a church and burial ground to the
German Reformed Presbyterians., ,The 103' x 206' lot located on Chapline
Street and numbered 61 was deed&to the trustees of the Reformed Church
one year later at a cost of 160 pounds. By 1769, $600 had been raised
by lottery to construct the original church. This was a small brick
structure with a cupola.

The congregation moved to its present location on West Main Street in

T 832 upon the completion of its new church at that site. The original
-nurch was demolished that same year. The new church.is sited on original
lot #U46, whose first purchaser was George Keiffer (Liber J/Folio 135).

The property was sold to the church by Mrs. Mary Ground. That building
had a stepped parapet facade with a central entrance defined by two
columns., Large windows were located in the flanking bays. Above the
entry and the windows were large lunéettes. A lunette also provided
illumination for the balcony that served as a sf&ing area for slaves and
domestics. A massive frame cuppolwtopped the ‘structure.

During the Battle of Antietam, the stpucture served as a hospital for
Union troops.

Since the Battle, the church as been remodeled at least three times;

in 1890, in 1946, and in 1965. The cornerstone on the building attests

to its construction chronology stating that the original church was
constructed in 1832 and rebuilt in 1890. According to a history of the
church, the front facade was completely remodeled in 1890. This included
the enclosure of the original center-bay entrance with a large window.

The windows in the east and west elevations were altered from rectangular
to pointed arch openings. Interior changes included exchangirf§straight-
backed pews with circular ones, removal of the plaster ceiling and insert-
ion of a wooden one (extant today), and mechanical improvements. Some

og the original floors were left intanct. The church was rededicated in
13891. ,

ontinued...)



9. Major Bibliographical References

5 0%
Survey NoyA_T11-668~

See attached sheets

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property 12

Quadrangle name
UTM Reterences

do NOT complete UTM references

AU b bbb g

JIRTN

Quadrangle scale

oL

Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing
clo bl Lo Lo bt ol Wy bbb
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Verbal boundary description and justification [ ot i Sharpsburg def‘in»ed’ byv fhe northeast
corner of West Main and Mewbh rirst alley west of Mechanic Street.

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state code county

code

state code county

code

11. Form Prepared By

nameitite Julianne Mueller

organization

date July 1991

street & number 2730 Ol”dway Street, N.W.

Washington, D.C.
city or town

telep-hone 202-36 446594

state

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section

was officially created by
be found in the Annotated
181 KA, 1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of

individual property rights.

return to:
Shaw House
21 State Circle

Maryland Historical Trust

Annapolis, Maryland 21401

(301) 269-2438

PS-2746
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CONTINUATION SHEET SURVEY NO. WA-II—§DﬁjL
7. DESCRIPTION
Page 7.1

The commemorative windows in the church have been donated by
members of the congregation, as well as by surviving members of
regiments that were treated in the church when it served as a
hospital during the Battle. The Moller Pipe Organ was installed
between 1943 and 1947. The pulpit came from the Zion Church in
Hagerstown circa 1965. Ceiling fans were added in 1980, as were
some downlights.

Behind the sanctuary on the left (facing the alter) is the pastor's
office which, in turn, leads into the Sunday school room. A door
at the back of the sanctuary on the right leads into a small room
that at one time served as a classroom. This room has a door for
the pastor that leads into the apse, a door leading to the outside,
and an opening into the new Sunday school room.

The Sunday School room extends across the entire width of the
building and has a full, raised basement holding a meeting room.
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CONTINUATION SHEET SURVEY NO. WA-II-M‘Ef
8. SIGNIFICANCE
Page 8.1

The building is noted on the 1922 Sanborn map as 212 West Main and
as having a two-story carriage house behind it along the alley and
a two-story garage at the northwest corner of the property. These
structures may have belonged to the property immediately to the
east of the church. They are not part of the church property
today.

The 1946 remodeling included the installation of the Moller Pipe
Organ. It is possible that it was at this time that the pastor's
office was added. The Sunday school addition was erected in 1965
on land immediately behind the original church and donated by the
Church's neighbors, Mr. and Mrs. Fred Roulette.

Significance

A preliminary architectural evaluation of the Christ Reformed
Church was made in April 1991 by Julianne Mueller during a survey
of Sharpsburg. At that time a survey site number WA-II-608 was
assigned and it was determined that the church is a contributing
element to Sharpsburg's historic religious and architectural
character. A summary sheet on the building with photographs was
submitted to the Maryland Historical Trust in June 1991. The
summary provides a basic description of the building and places it
with the Maryland Comprehensive State Historic Preservation Plan:
State Historic Context (Western Maryland Geographic Organization;
the Development Period of Agricultural-Industrial Transition; the
Historic Period Themes of Religion; and Architecture, Landscape
Architecture, and Community Planning).

Upon the suggestion of members of the Sharpsburg community, the
general history of the church was researched. It was concluded
that the building served an important medical and memorial role
during and after the Battle of Antietam, is a good example of
restrained, late 19th-century, Romanesque Revival architecture, and
meets two of the following eligibility criteria (A and C) for
listing on the Maryland Register.

Criterion A -- The property is associated with significant
historical events. The church served as a
hospital during and immediately following one
of the most significant battles of the Civil
War.

Criterion B -- The property is not associated with a
significant person.
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CONTINUATION SHEET SURVEY NO. WA-II-
8. SIGNIFICANCE
Page 8.2
Criterion C -- The building exhibits exceptional

architectural design, method of construction,
or craftsmanship, or is the product of a
trained architect. For 1its commanding
presence near the center of town, and for its
fine, restrained Romanesque-Revival detailing,
the Christ Reformed Church is a contributing
element to the architectural significance of
Sharpsburg.

Criterion D -- The property may provide important information
about history or prehistory. The property has
not been assessed for 1its archeological
potential. Because of its long history at
this site, it is possible that 19th- and 20th-
century archeological remains might be found
near the building. However, it should be
noted that the building has undergone several
remodelings and has been added to over the
years. These construction efforts, the most
recent of which occurred in the 1960s, might
have obliterated much of the archeological
record.
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9. BIBLIOGRAPHY

Page 9.1

Barron, Lee and Barbara. The Histo of Sharpsburg Maryland;

Founded by Joseph Chapline 1763. Privately Published: 1972.

Christ Reformed Church, historic photograph

Roulette, Annabelle E. "Welcome to Christ United Church of
Christ." Undated pamphlet.

Tour with Charlotte Davis.
MAPS:

1877 uncited map
1922 Sanborn Map
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